Land of Sky Regional Council
August 26, 2020
Regular Meeting

REGIONAL COUNCIL

Please mute all electronic devices, including cell phones, laptops, tablets, and recorders. Deleqates are
requested to state their names when moving on orders of business. Thank you!

AGENDA
l. Call to Order (12:30pm)
I Invocation -
. Pledge of Allegiance
Iv. Roll Call
V. Swearing-In of New Executive Committee Members and Officers

A. The Honorable Athena Brooks, Special Superior Court Judge & Former Chief District
Court Judge for the 29B Judicial District (Henderson, Polk, and Transylvania Counties)

VI. Modification and Approval of Agenda

VIl.  Public Comment

Vill.  Chairman’s Comments and COVID19 Roundtable

IX. Approval of Minutes from the June Regular Meeting, held Virtually via Zoom

X Presentations
A. myFutureNC: Increasing Post-Secondary Credential Attainment in Western NC -
MC Belk Pilon & Chuck Kaylor with the John M. Belk Endowment

XI. Old Business
Xil. New Business
Xlll.  Executive Director’s Report

XIV.  Important Dates
A. Next Virtual Regional Board Meeting via Zoom is scheduled for September 23, 2020

XV.  Adjournment




Subject:

Item Number:
Responsible Party:
Attachment(s):

Background:

Staff Recommendation:

Suggested Motion(s):

BOARD OF DELEGATES AGENDA ITEM

June 2020 Board of Delegates Virtual Meeting Minutes

X. Approval of Minutes from the June 2020 Virtual Regular Meeting
Zia Rifkin, Administrative Services

Minutes from the June 2020 Virtual Regular Meeting

A quorum was present to conduct business at the June 2020 virtual meeting
and the minutes provide a recap of the of the Public Hearing for the Fiscal
Year 2020/2021 Budget Ordinance, the Chair and Delegates Roundtable,
and the French Broad River MPO presentation regarding the Metropolitan
Transportation Plan (MTP) 2020-2045- Regional Transportation Projections
through 2045 ,and Special Recognition of Executive Committee members for
their service and recognition of Ann Whisenhunt's service to LOSRC. The
meeting recessed until Thursday, June 25, 2020 at 3:00pm, when the vote
occurred to approve the FY 20/21 Budget Ordinance.

Recommend acceptance of the June 2020 virtual meeting minutes

Move to approve the June 2020 virtual meeting minutes as submitted



VI

VL.

VIIL

Virtual Meeting via Zoom of
Land of Sky Regional Council Board of Delegates

June 24, 2020
Minutes

Call to Order — Chair Harris called the meeting to order at approximately 12:30pm.

Invocation — Chair Harris asked everyone to observe a moment of silence to reflect on recent events.

Pledge of Allegiance — Chair Harris led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call - Nathan Ramsey called the roll. The following members were present: Brian Caskey, Preston
Blakely, Barbara Volk, Albert Gooch, Larry Harris, Daniel Cobbs, George Morosani, Norris Gentry, Mike
Hawkins, Jonathan Kanipe, Bob Tomasulo, John Mitchell, and Larry Rogers.

Guests Present — Woody Dykes, Graham Fields, Kathe Harris
A quorum was present to conduct business.

Public Comment - No public comments were made

Modification and Approval of Agenda — The agenda was presented for approval with a modification to move
the French Broad River MPO'’s presentation to after the Delegates Roundtable.

Albert Gooch moved to approve the agenda as modified. Daniel Cobbs seconded and the motion
carried upon a roll call vote, without further discussion.

Approval of Minutes from the May Regular Meeting -

George Morosani moved to approve the minutes of the May 27, 2020 virtual meeting via the Zoom
platform as submitted. Albert Gooch seconded, and the motion carried unanimously upon a roll call
vote, and without further discussion.

Recognition of Special Guests —
Nathan Ramsey shared appreciation for members of the community who joined today's meeting.

Chair's Comments and Delegates Roundtable
Chair Harris requested that Delegates share about conditions in their jurisdictions.

Delegates Roundtable

Jonathan Kanipe - Shared that the Town of Biltmore Forest has passed its budget for next year. Facilities
still closed to the public and the special election was held yesterday at the Town Hall

Preston Blakely — Shared that the Town of Fletcher has passed their budget. Otherwise, the Town is in a
holding pattern.

Barbara Volk — Shared that the City of Hendersonville plans to adopt its budget this afternoon. The Apple
Festival is not going to happen this year. Some events are planned to occur but many features of the festival
will not. Orchard tours are planned, too. She encouraged guests to visit the City over Labor Day weekend.
Albert Gooch — Shared that the Village of Flat Rock has finished its budget process.

Brian Caskey ~ Shared that the Town of Mills River hopes to adopt the budget at their meeting tomorrow
night. Since the last meeting, Amazon has announced that a distribution center is going in, in the town.
Patrick Fitzsimmons - Shared that the budget has been adopted and most community activities are
canceled for the summer. The Town also had its first known protest in the Town'’s history over recent events.
George Morosani — Shared that he was very glad about Amazon going to Mills River.




Xl.

Bob Tomasulo — Shared that the next Regional Aging Advisory County (RAAC) meeting is scheduled to July
9, through virtual means.

Tim Love — Shared that Buncombe County passed its budget last week. Additionally, there is a special
meeting this afternoon to talk about COVID19 and the Govemnor's latest order. Government operations are
scheduled to re-open June 29.

Presentations/Recognition ~

A. French Broad River MPO — Regional Growth Projections to 2045 (move to after roundtable

Tristan Winkler, Director of the FBRMPO shared a presentation regarding the Metropolitan Transportation
Plan’s regional growth projections through 2045. He shared information on regional demographic projections
including population and employment projections. Growth and land use are important to transportation
planning since how land is used, influences transportation. Congestion and growth are connected to
transportation planning. Concerns about traffic intersecting in local conversations. Pointed out that making
projects for demographics is something the mpo is required to do. The model drives a lot of the conversation
about the need for new transportation options. Two main takeaways: firstly, the region is growing. The other
is that how we grow is important. Where that growth goes changes how the transportation network is
impacted. Between 2000-15, the five county region saw a large increase in population, which was
distributed around the region. Traffic is also growing throughout the region. Largest increases on mainly on
interstate routes. Grow is going to continue (190k residents) in the next twenty five years. Employment is
also expected to grow; projections suggest that employment is going to grow more slowly than population.
Significant shifts are predicted as part of the study. How the region is growing is also very important. The
connections in and around the region are very strong- commuting patterns between counties are very high.
The level of residents living and working in the same county is decreasing. The region is becoming more
regional. This isn't just transportation, that is a driving factor, housing statistics show that housing indexes
are increasing. Three growth scenarios were developed as part of the study: business as usual, efficient
growth, and congestion management (walkable urban places). The mpo selected the walkUP scenario. This
is not a revolutionary scenario; changes are there, but not necessarily the most prominent changes. Growth
is projected to increase the ost in bc, followed by he, tc and me. Growth impacts infrastructure. The walkup
scenario is based on those areas that are anticipated to have more growth with roadway connectivity. Less
connectivity (fewer alternates for people to make their trips). Good connectivity means that more trips might
be made by walking. What really matters is having an area with good roadway connectivity which deals with
congestion and traffic more efficiently. Good roadway connectivity could lead to less VMT (spell out). Travel
demand model is very highway focused. The more tools to mitigate challenges, the better. Takeaways
include accommodating growth in areas with good roadway connectivity, potentially some trips made by
other means than cars, improving the regions’ roadway connectivity as growth occurs should be promoted
when possible by local government. The mpo has no land use jurisdiction. The purpose of the study points
out how growth happens affects the transportation network. Manhan group managed the study, which is
available on the mpo website: frenchbroadrivermpo.org.

B. Special Recognition

Bob Tomasulo shared that today’s special recognition is for Ann Whisenhunt, who is being presented with
the Carol McLimans Trailblazer Award, which recognizes pioneers and innovators in the field of Aging
Services. Ann has trail blazed in many ways, sowing the threads of her talents into the community’s weave.
She has developed a strong, diverse group of volunteers to assist seniors aging in place in their homes. Bob
Tomasulo shared his appreciation for Ann’s talents and her commitment to the Senior Companion Program
(SCP). He also mentioned that Ann and her wife Sarah are looking forward to blazing new trails in their
lives.

Consideration and Approval of Consent Agenda ltems

New Business
Public Hearing for FY21 budget ordinance -




Xll.

X,

XIV.

XV,

The public hearing opened at 1:28pm. The public comment period for the FY21 budget ordinance stayed
open for 24-hours.

George Morosani moved fo recess the meeting until June 25 at 3:00pm, in order to provide 24-hours
for public comments regarding the FY 21 Budget Ordinance to be received. Albert Gooch seconded
the motion carried unanimously upon a roll call vote, and without further discussion.

Chair Harris expressed his pleasure at having served as Chair for the past couple of years and
communicated that he was looking forward to serving under Mayor Volk, the incoming Chair of the LOSRC
Board.

Executive Director's Report
Nathan Ramsey shared that his report was in the agenda packet. He encouraged Delegates and guests to
reach out with any questions or comments regarding the report.

Important Dates
A. Wednesday, August 26, 2020 is the next regularly scheduled Board of Delegates meeting, which may be

held virtually. A special recess meeting at 12:30pm will be held virtually on June 25 to vote on the FY 21
Budget Ordinance.

Vice Chair Volk reconvened the virtual meeting via ZOOM at 3:00pm on June 25 for the vote on the
FY21 Budget Ordinance.

Old Business

A. Adoption of FY 2020/2021 Budget Ordinance -

Per requirements of the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act, a balanced Budget Ordinance
must be adopted prior to July 1 of the applicable fiscal year.

Charlotte Sullivan shared a snapshot of the proposed budget for fy 21 and reviewed a summary of the
funding available for FY 21. She noted that the federal portion makes up over 60% of the budget for next
year. In addition, LOSRC is very fortunate to have local contracts. Local dues are the member government
dues, which support match requirements for grants. She noted that many grants also require an in-kind
match. She informed the Board that the budget usually changes between July and September, which is
reflected in the first budget amendment that gives a better picture of the overall LOSRC budget for the fiscal
year. Nathan Ramsey noted that Workforce Development has seen about a 50% reduction in funding over
the past few years, mainly due to low unemployment; the environment has changed, but the funding for FY
21 does not reflect the current economic environment. He shared his aniticipation that additional funding
might bereceived in the upcoming budget year.

George Morosani moved to approve Land of Sky Regional Council’s Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Budget
Ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. Albert Gooch seconded, and the motion carried
upon a roll call vote, and without further discussion.

Adjournment — Albert Gooch moved to adjourn the meeting. Patrick Fitzsimons seconded and the
meeting adjourned as there was no further business.

Respectfully submitted by Zia Rifkin



Land of Sky Regional Council

Executive Director Report

Respectfully submitted by Nathan Ramsey
August 26, 2020

1. Economic Community Development
. Received $20,000 BAND-NC grant from NC State University’s Institute for
Emerging Issues to promote digital inclusion.
. We have received a noncompetitive grant from EDA for $400,000 over 2 years
from the CARES Act, those funds will be reflected in the upcoming fiscal year.
. Submitted multiple competitive grants to EDA, ARC, FEMA, and DEQ,
including reshoring manufacturing focused on the outdoor gear sector in
collaboration with Southwestern Commission and High Country Council of
Governments.
o Erica participated in a panel with NADO and ESRI on “Telling Your CEDS Story
Online: An Introduction to Ersi Story Maps”
. Assisting regional PPE task force with many partners including MAHEC and
local governments.
. Introduced the “WIFI LOT” which is a regional map with accessible WIFI
locations.
° Waste Reduction Partners has been hosting webinars on COVID-19 reaching over
500 participants.
Partnering with the AAA team to assist administer the CARES Act funds.
Highlighted by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation for the WestNGN project.
ECD participated in the statewide webinar “Broadband and Beyond.”
Submitted a $140,000 grant application to the NC Department of Justice to
continue implementing innovative stormwater control measures in Black
Mountain.
. Initiating the WNC Stormwater Partnership for training, education, and
stormwater inventories for member governments,
. Partnering with the Chambers of Commerce, Small Business Support Agencies,
nonprofits, and economic developers to assist small businesses through COVID-
19 impacts.
) Partnering with EDA, NCORR, Rural Center, COGS, and others to build a
framework for Resilience and Recovery.
Facilitating the Regional Solid Waste Managers Forum and Recycling Program.
Contracting with several towns for zoning and mapping assistance.
. Working with regional partners to identify Affordable/Workforce Housing
opportunities for short-mid term solutions.

2. Workforce Development
Received $150,000 grant from the NC Department of Commerce to serve
dislocated workers.



Received $75,000 grant from the NC Department of Commerce for temporary
employment of dislocated workers to support COVID-19 contact tracing in
Madison and Transylvania Counties.

MAWDB submitted a $1.5 million grant application for the ARC/USDOL
WORC funding opportunity in collaboration with RTI International to enhance
the educator/teacher workforce pipeline in the region.

Still awaiting announcement from USDOL ETA on $5 million grant application
submitted in partnership with three other workforce boards and the NC
Department of Commerce.

Partnership with the Asheville Area Chamber of Commerce for a virtual job fair
platform that can be utilized on an unlimited basis by our region’s NCWorks
Career Centers and the Board.

Providing support for many employers who are downsizing or furloughing
workers as well as many dislocated workers.

Administration
Staff member tested positive for COVID-19 and the staff member was briefly in
the office and in contact with several other staff members including myself. Staff
who were in contact with the infected staff member were tested for COVID-19
and results were negative. The office was subject to an enhanced cleaning by a
contractor and staff must receive my permission to enter the office.
We received six proposals in response to our Managed IT Services RFP. VC3 is
our current provider and they have been our provider since 2015.
Land of Sky Regional Council will be one of six statewide virtual stops
(September 14) for the Leadership North Carolina Alumni tour held in
collaboration with the Institute for Emerging Issues.
The Council office large conference room will be an Early Voting location from
October 15 — October 31. We will limit staff presence in the office during this
time.
Exploring the possibility of hosting a “Foreign Trade Zone” (FTZ) for our region.
Staff participated in two racial diversity trainings offered by UNC Asheville and
NC DHHS.
EDI committee has met three times so far and we are focusing on internal
training, external outreach, review of LOSRC policies and the development of
hiring goals so Council will reflect the diversity of our region.
Working with Craft HR Solutions on diversity & inclusion efforts as well as staff
evaluation tool.
Employee Manual work completed (the manual is a living document, so it will
never technically be complete)
Completed LOS Board Orientation
Leadership NC Virtual Road Tour preparation for 9/14 LOS statewide kickoff
Danna participated in State Health Plan Open Enrollment 2021 and Health
Benefit Representative training webinars
Danna participated in 401k update with Charlotte and Prudential representative
Danna held new employee orientation meetings for new staff members



Danna and Wanda submitted annual Department of Labor report

Small business meetings with five county chambers of commerce and small
business support organizations to develop strategies to support our region’s small
businesses

Danna held contract review meeting with Charlotte and Employee Assistance
Network representative

Danna and Charlotte participated in annual School of Government Public Employee
Law Update

Danna arranged September Board of Delegates meeting speakers — UNC Asheville
Chancellor Nancy Cable and Western Carolina University Chancellor Kelli Brown
Our region has continued to move forward with our local MyFutureNC effort to
increase postsecondary credential attainment aligned with local workforce needs.
Weekly COVID-19 response calls have been averaging between 35 — 130
participants.

Preparing FEMA disaster recovery reimbursement request for eligible expenses.
Supporting staff telework needs and many virtual meetings.

Hosted multiple meetings on behalf of the NC Association of Regional Council of
Governments (NC ARCOG).

Response rates for the US Census in our region and NC are lagging and we are
working with local partners to increase the response rates for our four counties.
Failure to accurately count all of our population will cost our local governments and
communities over $300 million annually and will diminish our political
representation in the NC legislature and US Congress.

Articles of Incorporation for the LOSRC nonprofit “Friends of LOSRC* has been
approved by NC Secretary of State’s office.

Area Agency on Aging

CARES Act will roll out in August and September to aging providers in our
region. The following will go to county providers: Buncombe County: $487,241;
Henderson County: $259,246; Madison County: $58,489; and Transylvania
County: $92,293.

Dee Heinmuller joined the AAA team in July 2020 as the Senior Companion
Program Manager. Previously, Dee was the Director of Community Services in
Madison County. There she managed eight programs, forty employees, and a
$1.5 million budget. She has a Master’s Degree in Social Work from East
Carolina University and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Work from UNC-
Greensboro. Dee lives in Madison County on a small farm. She is very excited to
be part of a caring team of Senior Companion Program volunteers and Land of
Sky Regional Council, and is honored to be a part of this dynamic community.
Staff coordinated six evidence-based health promotion programs (Living Healthy
at Home Chronic Disease Self-Management Program) to begin mid-September
serving approximately 48 older adults. Staff concluded their first Zoom Tai Chi
for Arthritis workshop and are exploring options for offering another this fall.
Interest for both programs is growing, with referrals coming from Mission Health,
local federally qualified health centers (FQHCs), and healthyagingnc.com.



Community Health Workers continue to provide important services to Asheville
Terrace residents. Community Health Workers regularly support seven
homebound residents’ wellbeing and bring vital resources into the community of
248 households. A popular program they manage is the bi-weekly MANNA food
distribution serving approximately 70 residents at each distribution.

32 percent of the $46,836 that the State has provided to the Western Project
C.AR.E. office this fiscal year has been allocated to 30 dementia caregivers. Each
of these caregivers has received a voucher that is good for $500 worth of respite
care services. All but one are using the funds to pay for in-home respite care
provided by a private individual. The other caregiver will use the funds to pay for
adult day care two days per week for a month. Of the 30 caregivers who have
received respite funding, ten are new to the program. Thirteen of the 15 counties
served by the western office have received services so far this fiscal year.

Family Caregiver Program staff coordinated a Care Recipient Group with 12
people from Henderson County; had 47 conversations and/or email exchanges
with caregivers in Buncombe, 5 in Madison, 3 in Transylvania and 43 in
Henderson; emailed resource information to 194 caregivers; and completed
CARES Act Waiver and submitted to the State for approval.

5. Mountain Mobility

Looking at new funding models as the state eliminated ROAP (Rural Operating
Assistance Program) funds; several area nonprofit and educational organizations
depended on ROAP funds for transportation for clients and students.

Seeing continued increases in trips and increased ridership on Trailblazer routes.

RIDE program still in decline as passengers are continuing to delay unnecessary
travel.

We hired Sarah Marcin as our new PT RIDE Program Coordinator. She started with

us July 6.

6. NEMT
e Contract approved by Buncombe County for program year 2020 — 2021. Land of Sky

was selected as the provider of this service after a RFP process.

7. Transportation
e Held a virtual public workshop and public input window on the 2045 Metropolitan

Transportation Plan (MTP), expected to go before the MPO Board in September,
2020

e Held a virtual public workshop and public input window on the Hellbender Regional

Trail Plan, expected to go before the MPO Board in September, 2020

¢ Assisted Haywood County with the development of an RFQ for urban transit services
¢ Held a virtual public workshop for the Hendersonville Road Corridor Study (in-

progress)

¢ Continuing to work on the Tunnel Road Corridor Study
e Contracted with the Town of Waynesville and Henderson County to conduct

Greenway Feasibility Studies

e Continuing to work with the City of Asheville on the Close the GAP Plan

(Greenways, ADA, and Pedestrian)



e In progress to program $27,400,000 in Surface Transportation Block Grant funds to
member governments from FY 22- FY 26

e Preparing to kick-off the Regional Transit Feasibility Study

¢ Submitted highway, transit, and bike/ped projects from around the region for the
Statewide Prioritization Process



VINVATASNY UL _ NOSIAV W NOSJdIANIH 18NQCONNY
T = e = e R |

— i
&2

== - E——

IOUNOD |[pUOIDSY| INOA
IOUNOD |[PUOIB8 AYS JO PUDT

40
v

A |

SNOILNTOS 1VYNOIS3d JAILYIAD



VINVATASNY I NOSIAV W NOSJ3IANITH JGWOONNES

'SOOIAIDS
J0 Alanjjop eyi Joy uoibel yoes u uoijeziuebio jeuciBal o|buis e Yyum |eap 0} sejousbe aie)s
euljoled YHoN Buiiosuip psounouue sem Aofjod (Y1) uoiieziueBiQ) jeuoibBey pes eyl 0/6L AG

"SjUSWIUIBA0D
|ed0| pue aels pue swelbold |elspsy usemiaq uoljesadood J9sOoD J0) Pj|ed YoIym gQa| Ul
YOy uojjesadooy) |eyuswiuisrcBieu] 8y} o }Nsal e sem s|1ouno) [euoiBey 10 uoneubisep ay | s

(g uoibay) |1ouno)H

leuolBey AjS JO pueT wioy $813UNOD 1N0J JBYI0 By} pue ( UoIBoY) UOISSILULIOT) UI81SeMUIN0G

40 yed s1 AjunoD poomAet ‘Aepo | “elUBAJASUEI | pPUE UOSIPE|A ‘UOSIOPUSH ‘POOMABH]
‘'aquiodung ‘seljunod el Jo diysisuped e se ggg| ul uebaq |1ouno)) [euoibay AXG JO pueT .

SONINNI©39 DdSO1

SNOIINT1OS 1¥YNOI9Ad JAILYIND




VINVATASNY YL _ NOSIAQVY W

NOSJIANIH 38NOCODONNE

(£/61-€/61) I 49SNOYS|OH SOWel JOUIDAOL)-
LIUBWILIBAOB (800 JO UONEISdO BAII0BLS BY} UM PSUISOUCD A|

lejiwiis aJe yolym ssjousbe ejeys Jo poddns |ny
9Y} $BAISSBP SUC Yoes pue ‘Juswiulenob |eoo| Bulusyibusis Jo) wsiueyosw e ale suoljeziueBbi() [euoibey pes, mau ay |

‘Ajleoneqeyd|e pajeubisep s10U3SIp USo)XIS
'21e)s aujus ay) Bulierod suoibai Ajunoo-nw se 0/6|
Ul paysi|geise sem walsAs |1ounod [euolbai s euljoie) YLIoN

SNOI93d VNITOdVO HIJON

SNOILNT1OS T¥YNOI93d IAILY 3D



VINVATASNY 31 NOSIAVIN NOSJIANIH 1dINODONNG

VINVATASNVYL
f 'S81}UNO0D elueAjAsuel | pue ‘uosipe

‘UOSISpPUSH ‘equiodoung — g uoibay

s eutjoleD) YlION SoAISs ‘apimuoljeu
suoneziuebio yons QfG Jo auo

pue eujoie YoN Ul s|1ounod |euoibal
gl 40 U0 ‘|1ouno)) |eucibay A)S Jo pueT

NOSY3AN3IH

'SuaZI|o s, uoibau uno }jauaq

yoiym sweuboud pue syosfoid sajsiuiwpe pue sjuswiuianob

|e00| 0} @auejsisse |eoluyoay buipinoid siaploq edioiunw pue
AYunoo ssouoe yoeas ap\ “uoljezjuebio yuswdojaasp pue Buiuueld
JuswuIdA0b [BD0] ‘AJUNoo-13NW B S| []ouno)) [euoiBay A3g Jo pueT

JdV IM OHM

SNOILINTOS 1TYNOISEdd FIAILVYIND




VINVATASNY YU NOCSIAVIN NOSJIANIH JdNOODONNG

S81}UNWWOD Jaquuaw INo 10} $82IAISS [eUOIDaI pue '8)els ‘|elopa) Jo AlaAl|ap oY) Ul 80Us||ooXa
jo pJepuejs e Buipiroid e|iym Sel3uNod BjUBAJASUBI | pUB ‘UOSIPE|A ‘UOSISPUSH ‘0quiodung
Ul sanssi buibiaws pue JueAs|al 0} SUOIIN|OS |euoiBal dAI3ea.1d epiAcId O] SI UOISSIL INO

NOISSIN dNO




VINVATASNY UL NOSIAQV N NOSJIANIH 1dNOCOONNSY

o|qeynba
pue JuslsIsuod ‘jey ale jey) seunpsdold pue saioljod Juswa|dwl pue dojoAsp |[IM OAN
uoibai uno pue sjusi|o
'slopuny ‘sjuUsWILIBAOCD JaquuslL ‘SIS3I0M-00 INO 0} 8|CBIUNODDE SBAISSINO P|OY |[IM BN
Bupiel s 1o} uonerosidde ue yum Ayjiqisuodse. [euosiad Jo ainynd e 0} POIHWILIOD 2Je SN
uoluido Jo Ayisionlp yoadsal |[Im AN e
uolfbal JNo pue SjUs||D ‘SIBPUN ‘SIUBWIUISAOL
JaguuBW ‘SIS%JOM-0D JNO YHM UOIIEDIUNWILLIOD INO Ul Jea|d pue uado ‘1sauoy aq ||Im AN
JusuiuoldiAus Buppom aaijsoddns
pue Bunsnuy e 1e1s0) 01 uoissedwloo pue yoadsals ‘Ajubip yum sjdoad e 1ee.) || BAN -
1abBuoJys sn axew uoisn|oul pue ANSIoAIp aAsIjeq SAN
AJisIeAIp OlUY}e pue |e1oes (1spualb ‘|ein}no anjea apN e

A0 SINTVA 30D dNO

SNOILINTOS TYNOISIY IAILYIYND




VINVATASNY I NOSIAVIN NOSJIANIH idNOONN4d

._Oumc_\m‘_ooo

S80IAIBG BARENSIVILIPY 1oBeuepy 10398110 OdN
g SUOIIEOIUNWIWOD) 1eBeuep| AN[I9O UiRIUNO JoAly peouq yousl
SIS BUASKYD | AN ‘umoug epus| ‘sBuiuuap pIA d9juI uesH ‘u O_U_.GN_ u m@‘_o

8y} Jo suojjesado
Aep-03}-Aep ayj 1no

Alied 0y Jje3s |euoissajoud
pue 1030811(] 8AI}N09X]

. . ue sAojdwe j1ounoD ay |
Jopeuq bulby  1opoenq juswdojorsg loyeuQ 1039811 SIOPHOMN
uo Adusby easy  AjUNWILIOY) 3 9|UIOUODT J10398.1(] 80UEUl aAIINoaxg Anda(] R 10108417 9AIIN29X] .w._mﬂv_op‘_mv_m”_.w _mco_mw‘_
*19jon] suuye ‘uosiapuy eosLg ‘ueal|ng enjofeYD ‘Alngsuejg euuegg ‘Aaswey ueyieN :
A& pue ‘sjeuoissajoud
JuawdojaAsp d1LIOU0DD
) ‘S|e1oljo payos|e
ﬁ‘ _, [eo0] jo dn apew pieoq
g/ e Aq pauianob si |1ounoD
NV3L dIHS¥3AVI1 DASOT leuotbey Axg Jo puer

J3INdIAOD FdV IM MOH

SNOILINT1OS 1YNOISDAY FAILYIED




VINVATASNY I _ NOSIAVIA NOSJdIdANIH 38N OODONNSY

'SUI9)
Jeah BuUO BAIBS pPUB 8811ILILIOY) SAINDSXT B} JO SIOQUISW WO} POI0S|os aJe SIeol() “Jeinsesl |
pue ‘Aieyaiosg ‘uieyD 821/ | UIeyD ayj ale |1ouno)) jeuoiBey A3 Jo pueT Jo s18014Jo 8y |

's}sa193ul Ajiouiw jeuoibad juasaidal 0} pleog AXg jo pue ayy Ag pejuiodde sie seyebajep
obue|-1e uno4 "sajebs|ep se anlas os|e [1ounoy) Alosiapy BulBy jeuoiBay oyl Jo sley) ey |
's}salajul JuswdojaAsp olwouo9s Jussaidal 0} e1ebBajep auo syuiodde JuswuisAob Ayunoo yoes

"Apoqg Buiuianob Buiuiodde Jiayy jo ainsea|d sy 18 oAIes so1eb8|9(]

'sjuswiuIeAob Jaquiaw Bunuiodde sy Jo sjerolyjo pajos|e aie sojebsa|ep Alewlld "ejebejep
9jeusa}je auo pue s1ebsjsp Atewnd suo — sejebojep omy sjuiodde Juswiuienob Jaquisw yoeq

J3INJIAOD FdV IM MOH

SNOILN10S 1¥YNOI9D3d IAlILYIAD




VINVATASNY UL _ NOSIAV W NOSdIANIH i8N OONNSY

"uolbal

ano Joj Buipuny [euoyippe ul 00Q'GEZ$ 1on0
abelans| am ‘sonp Jaquuaw Jo Jejjop AIoAs 10

suoljeziueblo |euoljeu/eiels 1oy sen(]
UOI||IW QLS St LZ-07Z JedA suoneisedo pue sesuadxe Bupgeaw [1OUNOYD)
|eosi o} 196pnqg Buiuuibaq ay | sjuswalinbau Bujyojew juels) .
110} senp JuswiuleAob |eoo| sasn Ayg Jo pue]

'$8|0AD |BOSI} JUBIBYIP

eAey sjuelb |esopay Auew se ‘Jeah (%2Z) SeNQ JUSWUIBAOL) |ED0T
|eosly a3 Buunp sawiy |esanes (%Q1) punyj-u| pue ‘suoneuo
pepuswe si }obpng ay| ‘me| ‘SJUEBIC) 8)BALId ‘S}ORIIUOY) JUBSUIUIBAOL) |ED0T
s1e1s Aq pasinbai se “JeaA yoes (%/1) spund ee1g
pa1dope si 196pnqg paoue|eq vy (%£9) spun4 |etopa4

40 139ang 3nO ® dIaNnd AV IM MOH

Al

v,

SNOILINTOS 1TYNOISFY FAILYIdD




VINVATASNY 3 NOSIAVW NOSJdIANIH FJdNOCONNSH

NOISSINWO)D
TYNOID3H
NYIHOVYIVvddVY

‘eale AJunod 1IN0 INO U] Sal3IAI}0. pue
Buiuue|d Juswdojansp olwouos9 |euoibai
10} 101381 JUsWdo|aAa(] 21WIOUOD]

pea7 ey} se () uolessiuiwpyy
juswdojaas( olwouoo] sy} pue (DYY)
uolssiwwo?) [euoibay ueiyoejeddy ayy Ag
paziubooal si [1ounoy) jeuoiBay A3G Jo pueT

10141S1d INJINdOTIAIA DINONOD3 avii

SNOILNTOS 1TYNOISTA FAILYIAD




VINVATASNVY YL _ NOSIAV W NOSJd3IANIH 3IdNODONNY

'sjusi|o Ajuno squuooung paljljenb
0} $801AJ8S Uolje1I0dsuURI) PUB AIJRIISIUILIPE SOPIAOIH — 19JUa)) 921n0say uolepodsuel |

'SIIUNWILLOD pUB SJuUBLWUIBAOD |2O0| INO 10} SadIAlSS Jusuudojaasp
AJlunwiwioo pue ‘olwiouoos ‘uoljeylodsuel) Buiuug|d - uswdojersg Allunwition) B oILIoU09T

'S9SSOUISNg puUE SUSZIIID INO JO Spaau
Juswdo|eAsp 8210)I0M S$8SSaIPPE pUE J0) SUe|d - Juawdojereq 82100 B4y UIBIUNOJN

'uojfBel UNo Ul saljiuey JiBY} PUE S}NPE Jop|o Jo Buiaq |jom eyl sejowoid - Buiby uo Aousby eely

LO11NT10S TYNOI9AY 3

S




VINVATASNV Y1 _ NOSIAVY W NOSJIANIH J4NCONNY

mcfnm;mz Pue snopiaq

. N
e T/ \lﬂﬁg
IDIAY3S \& &
NIVINNO4 (/] NN

NOIISAVYHX3 2 mJo_E SIAINTY

018 ‘Juswabebus pue yoesiino se ||om se
‘suoljejas oljgnd ‘Buieniew ‘saoinosal ueuiny
‘sisuped pue sjuswipedap ‘sjelolyjo paos|e
|eJopa) pue a1e)s ‘|ed0| yym sdiysuonela.
Buluiejuiew pue Bujysijgeiss 1ebpng

Je||op uol|iw-13nw ‘Buimolb e sepnoul siy |
[1ouno?) |euoibsy A3S JO pueT Jo uoiesnsiuiwpe
||eleA0 8y} o} a|gisuodsal s| Juswpedsp siy |

NOILVAISININAV

SNOILNTOS 1YNOIS3Y




VINVATASNVY I NOSIAQVY A NOSYdIANIH FIdNOONNGY

1S8.83Ul JO SIOI|JUOD JO senss| Aue pue syuewaiinbal 81elg pue [elspe Juaiind Yyiim juel|dwod
Aoljod Buiseyoind e ‘quawiuolIAUS [043U0D [eulalul Buoils B suljIno Alles|o seinpsedo.d

pue seloljod s j1ouno)) a8y 'siesA Og JBAO JO BUIUNODOY [BIUBWIUIBAOL) Ul 8ousladxe
pauIquod sey OYSO e (1slje1oadg Bununoooy G pue isijeloedg Bununoooy juels) | pue
)sijeloadg eoueul{ pue |joJAed B ‘T | 4 G'¢) J4e1s Bununoooy ey | “pieog |1ouno?) ayy Ag pardesoe
PUE UOISSIWIWOYD) JUBLIUIBAOL) |B00T 8y} AQ paaoidde si jey) Jipne [eussxa |enuue ue sey SO

'S}OBIJUOD UOIBPUNO 8]BAlId PUB |ED0T WUOJ) 9dUB|Eq By} pue 91e1s ¥%/| ‘|eiopa
%E9 ‘syeib QO Jero sbeuew am ‘000'000’LLE 1910 J0 1BpPNQg [BnUUE Ue YlIAA "STusLIUIBAcB
|ed0| G| JNO WoJ} senp wod) uoddns [euoiippe yum ‘pepuni-juelb Ajuewiid si Ayg jo pue

)30 JONVNI4
Y 5

w -

SNOIINT10S 1YNOISDdd IAILY IO




VINVATASNY YL

NOSIAVIN NOSJdIdANIH JdINODONNG

[1ounoD Alosiapy Buiby [eucibey .
alnje|siba |ooH Je| Jojuag .

JUeID) 300|g 81eD) AHUNWIWIOD) pue BWIOH — »
welibold uojuedwoy) JIolUsS
IyvOwelold .

uewspnqwQ a/ep wia| Buol .
UOIJUBABI BSESS|(] 3 UOIOWOId YI[edH
weiboid jueiedpuels) 191so4 .

welbolg poddng tenibaie) Ajjwey .

epn|ou| swelboud

'SISeq |enUUE Ue Uo

SJE[|OP UOI||ILU G JOAO IO} ©|CBIUNO0II. S| pPU. ‘SI93UN|OA JO Spaipuny
‘spaqg swoy buisinu OOES ‘SIOEIJUOD [BISPS} PUE B1EIS ()G JOAO
obeuew Jje1g -eoe|d uj obe Asayj se synpe Jap|o oddns 03 si |eob INQO
‘uolba.J 8y} Ul s1aA|Ba.Ied pue s)jnpe Jap|o 0] S8dIAISS pue swielboid
Jousdns spinoid o} [eyded pue ‘seapl ‘se0inosal abeians| Jje1g

ONIOV NO ADNIOV VIV




VINVATASNYJdL | NOSIAVWA NOSJdIANIH JENOONNE

welbold ss|oIyap Ues|D/SaIj)) ues|)

Juswisbeuey puewa uoneuodsuel | . Buiuiel |
S0UB)SISSY [BDIUYO8 | uoneuodsues| dlgng e 3 UOIle]l[IoB4 S8jllULIOD R plecg .
.3 uoneziuebiQ Buluue|d [einy A4S jo pue7 . ssoInIeg sisAjeuy ele R Buiddey ‘gl .
3 ..p uoleziuebiO Buiuue|q ueyjodonsy JeAly peoig yous. weibold BuijoAosy % Juswebeue|y o1sepn -

Buluueld uoneuodsuel | Juswabeue|y|
19SSy 13 AIOJUDAU| JOIEMULIOIS  »
Buluue|q sousl|isay [euciBey Buiuue|d paysiaiepp g [BIUSWIUOIAUT .
(‘018 ‘pueqgpeolq ‘speo. sue|d @SN pue] g aAisuayaIdwon) .
SS9O2E JOMSS 'J91em) uoiejusws|duwl| ainjoniisesul . Buiuoz pue Bujuuelqd
weiboud spjojumolrg . JUSWIBDIOJUT BP0
UOIeUIPIO0)) puegpectg NONISOA UOIJeJISIUILIPY 73 SBOIAISG
ABejeng juswdojers(g ojwouoo] aaisusyeldwor . JUel) uonepunoH x} 9lels ‘|elepa
Jusutdojaas(] D1LUOU0DT Juswidojaas Ajlunwiuio))

:apn|oul swelboid "uoibai sy InoybnoJy 'serousbe Jsulied pue siuswiuIeAob
Jsgquuswl ym uojjeloge|joo Ul ‘sediales pue swelboid Ajuond juswedwi pue dojensp
0} S}OBJJUOD |BOO| pUE SjUEID UOIePUNO) PUE ‘|e1apsy ‘91els )G JOA0 obeios| J1els

m%w_%_w% tE:zzooﬁ w_\_,__n w.__,_m%wom




VINVATASNY UL _ NOSIAdV WA

(OdIA) SIUBWIUIBA0L) JaqUUIBIA
0} sjuels) uoljepodsuel |
aAladwon) welbold
seAneniu| Aoljoq uoneyodsues |
opimalels ul sedionied

SS820.d Buluue|d
uonjeyodsuel | -palinbay
-A||e1opa4 ay3 1no Alen

SLE](F
uoljeylodsuel | UO s1ap|oyadeIs
18U} PUE ‘SJUBWIUIBA0S

907 ' OQDN UM $I0/

NOSJdIANIH GOOMAVH

SiapP|oYyeIS PUE ‘SJUSLUUIBA0L)
|eQo ‘siojeiadQ jlsuel |

0] ©0UR)SISSY/ |EQIUYDS | OPIAOIH
uoibay ey ul sailiold
uQpeyoedsuel | sulwieleq dieH
(uoneziueblio Bulyue|

[Biny = Ody ‘uonheziueblip
Buluue|d ueyjodonsin = OdIA)
Bupje| uoisioaq uoneyodsuel |
10} SwnJo| [eucibay

OdadSO1 % OdiNdg4

IGWNODNNE



VINVATASNY I NOSIAVYIN NOSJd3IANIH 18WNOONNE

Bio-uiaaiedeareuszunow uoneodioy duysiaquisiy sy ABojouiey 39 Aq pasamod
“a192(g prosg yously MNOTISC
. .—./.a.:a;.,::‘_@v uut 2.0 9805 YT
| G10'syi0mealeujejunows / - SIHHONNYY SLIOSIM B.INWO §.§u s.ﬁ.m

PI20G 1UOLIAOPAID [P
I0OPJIOM 57

, vauY NiviNnow w g

= 2434 SHD] TVNOSTIM e _‘.,.H..,.“”.H.HQ\
& zm_ukxm& = ,
JUBAA NOA SMIOMDON amwnn ZF Lonony 35 @ .UwI<Z

0552-£88 (828) - Auno) erueaiisuer)
2£92-28L(828)- unc) vosipey

69 (628) - A
T s om0 BY1189)

17 SO PEJu0) m___>uoﬂuwu5: aA i i
O._. Q_w_]_ H.mo 4 uﬂIE P T dl «TIOWITIG
I/ AR g

2

AN 'shemyjed 1910 Buipiemal puly YyinoA
pue siexess qol buidjay ajiym spasu a210p10M Jidy) 198U
sieAojdwe Buidjay uo snoo4 ‘swesboid YinoA NI | XaN

SYIOMDN PUE sJelua)) 1eale)) SYIOAMDN S.uoibal ino uoddns

$3I0M 01 386pnq [enuue uol|IW +Z$ e Yum pleoq pa| JeAojdwi

~N
NS, /209 uswidopnsp AQIVO9g ININDO1IAIQ
% 9210))10M IDYOHAOM VIAV NIVINNOW

Va4V NIVINNOW ®




ALNNOD 3dWODONNd

(Aiiep|3 pue psjgesiq
9y} 1o} souspuadspu| diysieply) uoneulpioo) welboid Iy -
SOOINIOG Joze|q|iel| .
90IAI8G Jsuelsjeied Areyusws|dwo) YAy o

AY|IQOIN UIRIUNOA

Ajlenuue syusi|o 9/6| BuiAles sloquUBW 1JBIS G »
uoneuodsues | piedipay Aousblewg-uoN

Anjiqo

uleluNo|A pue uoljeuodsuel | piesipsiy Aouabiawg-uoN ybnoiyy
$jUdl|0 paljijenb 0} s8dIAISs uoljeodsuel) pue sAleNsIUILIpPE
opiroid 01 AjunoD equuooung Yiim S10BIIU0D AXG JO pueT

] o IINTO IDRNOSTRY m D
aRA Nk =1 W1 MOJSNW ] JIINID IDANOSTY
~ AISCANVT

NOILV.1dOdSNVl

10 ININLMYEIC] v

T SO 1LNTOS TYNOIOAY




VINVATASNY YU _ NOSIAQVIN NOSJd3IANIH J8WOONNSE

1030841 &AlINoexg Ainde(q ‘Aingsuelg euue(
1010811 8AI3N0aXT ‘Aesuwiey ueyieN
SIg)

INOA JNVHL

SNOIL1INTOS TVNOIS9Fd FAILYIAND




